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          1   "Genocide -- Conditions of Life". On the seventh page, we have 
 
          2   "Genocide -- Forced Transfer of Children". On the eighth page, we 
 
          3   have "Crimes Against Humanity -- Enslavement". On the ninth page, 
 
          4   "Crimes Against Humanity -- Deportation". The tenth page, "Crimes 
 
          5   Against Humanity -- Imprisonment" and, at the bottom of the page, 
 
          6   "Crimes Against Humanity -- Rape". 
 
          7   [14.22.56] 
 
          8   And I can actually stop going through the documents, if my case 
 
          9   manager -- he can stop clicking, but I'll just quickly mention 
 
         10   the other ones: "Crimes Against Humanity - Political or Racial 
 
         11   Prosecution", "War Crimes -- Taking of Civilian Hostages", "War 
 
         12   Crimes -- Forcing Prisoners of War to Fight", "War Crimes -- 
 
         13   Denying Trials to Prisoners of War or Civilians", "War Crimes" 
 
         14   heading, "Wanton Destruction of Property". 
 
         15   [14.23.24] 
 
         16   These are the headings for the DC-Cam "Guide for Historical 
 
         17   Overview". And I put it to you that, if I read this document, 
 
         18   this document does not strike me as a guide for historical 
 
         19   interviews or for a neutral approach to information that may be 
 
         20   out there, it strikes me as a blueprint for a later prosecution 
 
         21   of certain individuals. 
 
         22   It seems to this - to the Nuon Chea defence team that DC-Cam is 
 
         23   trying to provide building blocks for a later trial in the form 
 
         24   of inculpatory statements. It seems much less a tool for 
 
         25   comprehensive and neutral historical research. 
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          1   If I provide you with this overview and I read these headings out 
 
          2   to you, would you agree with this assessment by the Defence? 
 
          3   A. For what you have just raised, for us, as the interviewers, we 
 
          4   could only ask about each point only when the interviewees 
 
          5   allowed us to ask about those points. 
 
          6   Q. Thank you, Mr. Dara, but I was more talking about the set-up 
 
          7   of the documents, the construction of the documents. 
 
          8   [14.25.11] 
 
          9   This does, again, not seem to be a neutral historical interview; 
 
         10   it seems directly related to an anticipated prosecution of the 
 
         11   DK-era leaders. 
 
         12   I also will show you, if my case manager can follow this, on page 
 
         13   19 of the same document-- It's actually an intrinsic part of this 
 
         14   historical DC-Cam guide. It's a layout. If I can get it on the 
 
         15   screen? You may want to call it an annex, but it's headed -- or 
 
         16   the title states "Crimes Covered by the Draft Khmer Rouge 
 
         17   Statute". And it lists all the crimes that this Court can 
 
         18   prosecute, in its draft phase, I must add. 
 
         19   Do you understand that the Nuon Chea defence team, again, would 
 
         20   think, upon reading this document, that DC-Cam has been trying to 
 
         21   provide building blocks in the form of inculpatory statements to 
 
         22   the Prosecution, in this case? 
 
         23   A. In collecting documents and information, as Mr. Lawyer may 
 
         24   recall, upon the purpose of DC-Cam, we intend to provide that 
 
         25   information and those documents to people who are interested in 
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          1   finding justice for those who lived through the Democratic 
 
          2   Kampuchea regime. That is, the information does not serve only 
 
          3   the purpose of the history, but also for those who wish to find 
 
          4   justice for the survivors of the regime. 
 
          5   [14.27.22] 
 
          6   Q. Thank you for that answer. 
 
          7   I will leave this topic for the moment. I may come back to it 
 
          8   later, but I have to somewhat shuffle through my questions, 
 
          9   considering the length of time that I have left. 
 
         10   I would also like to ask you some questions about your personal 
 
         11   knowledge of the early stages of this trial. 
 
         12   Were you ever present at meetings between DC-Cam representatives 
 
         13   and OCP representatives? 
 
         14   A. I worked on this matter when I received requests for documents 
 
         15   and when -- I may be approached if there is any question 
 
         16   concerning the list of document, and I may be also approached by 
 
         17   the Office of the Co-Prosecutor. 
 
         18   Q. Let me ask a more specific question: Before DC-Cam handed any 
 
         19   document over to the OCP, to your knowledge, were there meetings 
 
         20   between the OCP and DC-Cam, personal meetings, where people were 
 
         21   in the same room? 
 
         22   [14.29.19] 
 
         23   A. Could you please clarify your question? When you talk about 
 
         24   institutions meeting, what meeting are you referring to? May I 
 
         25   request that you clarify your question and make it clear and 
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          1   short? Thank you. 
 
          2   Q. I apologize, Mr. Dara. I'll make it clear and short. 
 
          3   As far as you know, before any documents were transferred between 
 
          4   DC-Cam and OCP, have there ever been meetings between 
 
          5   representatives of, on one side, the OCP -- Office of the 
 
          6   Co-Prosecutor -- and DC-Cam on the other side? 
 
          7   A. Through my recollection, the Center assigned me as a focal 
 
          8   person for communication with the ECCC with regard to the 
 
          9   delivery of documents. Sometimes, we had meetings, the meetings 
 
         10   where students, or researchers, or visitors are allowed to meet 
 
         11   within DC-Cam for discussion on the relevant documents. 
 
         12   [14.31.02] 
 
         13   Q. It may be an issue with translation, but this still did not 
 
         14   answer my question. 
 
         15   As far as you are aware, have there been meetings between OCP 
 
         16   representatives and DC-Cam representatives before DC-Cam 
 
         17   transferred documents to the OCP? 
 
         18   A. To be precise, before documents were provided to the Office of 
 
         19   Co-Prosecutors, normally, such a request would be entertained 
 
         20   through the list of documents provided to the DC-Cam. And the 
 
         21   list for the request of documents from DC-Cam is also available 
 
         22   at the Court, at the ECCC-- 
 
         23   MR. PRESIDENT: 
 
         24   The Co-Prosecutor, we noted you were on your feet a moment ago. 
 
         25   You may proceed. 
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          1   [14.32.11] 
 
          2   MR. ABDULHAK: 
 
          3   Mr. President, given that my learned friend is dealing with a 
 
          4   very long period of time, I think it would assist everyone if he 
 
          5   makes his questions more specific. Is it a question in relation 
 
          6   to the preparation of the introductory submission, or is it a 
 
          7   question in relation to a subsequent filling? 
 
          8   And, of course, there are a number of filings in the case file. 
 
          9   Dates can be given where filings were submitted by the OCP, 
 
         10   indicating that documents were received from DC-Cam. 
 
         11   [14.32.37] 
 
         12   I think the question is not fair to the witness. It's very hard 
 
         13   for him to comment when we're discussing proceedings that have 
 
         14   lasted for some five years. 
 
         15   MR. PAUW: 
 
         16   I thank Mr. Prosecutor for this intervention. You're right; it's 
 
         17   indeed hard to clarify what period we are talking about. 
 
         18   BY MR. PAUW: 
 
         19   I-- And I'm looking at my colleague on the other side; can you 
 
         20   provide the date for the very first transfer of documents between 
 
         21   DC-Cam and the OCP? 
 
         22   MR. ABDULHAK: 
 
         23   Mr. President, we-- 
 
         24   (Judges deliberate) 
 
         25   [14.33.34] 
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          1   MR. PRESIDENT: 
 
          2   The objection by the Co-Prosecutor is not sustained. 
 
          3   It is the method of questioning by the questioning by the 
 
          4   counsel, and counsel is asking to see the relationship, or the 
 
          5   communication between the ECCC and the DC-Cam. And whether the 
 
          6   document should be presented now, it is not really the role of 
 
          7   the prosecutor to do that. It is indeed the role of the Chamber 
 
          8   to intervene. 
 
          9   [14.34.23] 
 
         10   So the -- Counsel, you may proceed. 
 
         11   And witness is also advised to respond exactly to the question 
 
         12   being asked. The question was: Was there any meeting between the 
 
         13   representative of DC-Cam and representatives from the Office of 
 
         14   Co-Prosecutor? You just say yes or no. And, if yes, how many 
 
         15   times? 
 
         16   I think that would be the very appropriate response to the 
 
         17   question already. You just say no if you don't know. 
 
         18   MR. PRESIDENT: 
 
         19   Counsel, you may now proceed. 
 
         20   And I think you're running out of time. And, please, make the 
 
         21   most of your time left, and use the time efficiently and wisely, 
 
         22   because when it runs out you cannot really protest that your time 
 
         23   has not been wisely used and you ask for further time added. 
 
         24   MR. PAUW: 
 
         25   Mr. President, thank you. It may have been lost in translation, 
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          1   but I didn't hear the answer by the witness to the question that 
 
          2   you, yourself, put before him. 
 
          3   [14.35.58] 
 
          4   Could we hear the repeated answer? 
 
          5   MR. PRESIDENT: 
 
          6   Counsel, you may rephrase or repeat your question. Witness 
 
          7   perhaps forgets what question was put. 
 
          8   Witness is now advised listen to the question carefully and be 
 
          9   ready to respond. 
 
         10   BY MR. PAUW: 
 
         11   Q. Mr. Dara, the question remains: was there any meeting between 
 
         12   the OCP -- between OCP representatives and DC-Cam representatives 
 
         13   before any documents were handed over by DC-Cam to the OCP? 
 
         14   MR. VANTHAN DARA PEOU: 
 
         15   A. Thank you, Counsel. With regard to the meeting, if you asked 
 
         16   whether I, myself, had ever met with representatives of the 
 
         17   Co-Prosecutors, the answer is no. 
 
         18   Q. Mr. Dara, thank you for this answer, but it was not the answer 
 
         19   to my questions. 
 
         20   [14.37.23] 
 
         21   I look at the clock, though, and I have to move on. I would 
 
         22   suggest that it's not the questioning by the Nuon Chea defence 
 
         23   team that is the problem, but the answers given by the witness, 
 
         24   which are just not on point. This may be a translation issue, but 
 
         25   I just note it for the record. 
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          1   The following question -- and I will put it as simply as 
 
          2   possible: Did DC-Cam ever suggest certain lists of documents or 
 
          3   certain categories of documents to the OCP, which the OCP could 
 
          4   use for the prosecution of Nuon Chea, as far as you know? 
 
          5   A. I would like to emphasize on this: every piece of document 
 
          6   DC-Cam provided to the Office of Co-Prosecutors was done so 
 
          7   through a request. 
 
          8   [14.38.33] 
 
          9   For example, the list of documents would be noted down on the 
 
         10   request, and there would be proper signatures before the 
 
         11   documents be delivered. 
 
         12   Q. Again, this was not an answer to my question. I note this, and 
 
         13   I look at the clock, and I simply have to move on; I cannot put 
 
         14   all relevant questions to this witness, as he doesn't answer even 
 
         15   the most straightforward questions, not even with an "I don't 
 
         16   know". It just leaves many questions unanswered. And again, I 
 
         17   just have to continue. 
 
         18   You have stated, both yesterday and today, that you -- when 
 
         19   documents come in, you organize them and you organize them as to 
 
         20   when they come in; is that correct? A simple yes or no answer 
 
         21   will do. 
 
         22   A. There are huge -- or there's a volume -- volumeness of 
 
         23   documents, and I think it's difficult to say exactly when the 
 
         24   documents were first put into the entry. You may try to do so 
 
         25   through the database of the DC-Cam, and you will learn more 
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          1   precise information than this. 
 
          2   [14.40.21] 
 
          3   Q. Thank you, but we're here today. And I would like to ask you: 
 
          4   Is it correct that you organize documents both by the date they 
 
          5   come in and by the source that provided you with the documents? 
 
          6   A. Yes, it is correct. 
 
          7   Q. Do you ever organize your files or copies of your files based 
 
          8   on certain individuals and, to be more specific, based on -- 
 
          9   relating to Mr. Nuon Chea? 
 
         10   A. In general, all copied documents -- documents that have been 
 
         11   copied -- have to be reviewed, and there are documents with 
 
         12   titles. And on some documents, we noted "Uncle Nuon" and "Uncle 
 
         13   Van" names on them. 
 
         14   Q. Thank you. And would you, at DC-Cam, have, for example, a file 
 
         15   that is called "Nuon Chea file", which would contain relevant 
 
         16   documents relating to Nuon Chea all assembled in one place? 
 
         17   [14.41.05] 
 
         18   A. These documents have been compiled and classified into 
 
         19   different categories. For example, documents that are relevant to 
 
         20   biographies or the D category, which is the mixed documents. 
 
         21   Q. And would one of the categories be the category "Nuon Chea"? 
 
         22   A. On some documents, there are Om Nuon's name, and these names 
 
         23   do not appear on other documents, so far as I remember. 
 
         24   [14.43.09] 
 
         25   Q. This doesn't answer to my question. Is there a specific 
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          1   category of documents at DC-Cam -- it may be a physical file or 
 
          2   it may be a file on the computer system, but would there be a 
 
          3   file called "Nuon Chea file", with documents relating 
 
          4   specifically to Nuon Chea? 
 
          5   A. To be precise, I think it would be better if counsel can refer 
 
          6   to any particular file or document and then show it to me so that 
 
          7   I can explain. 
 
          8   Q. I think that's problem. I cannot, and I do not work at DC-Cam, 
 
          9   and you do. And I'm asking you whether such a file exists, and 
 
         10   maybe, then, you could tell me which documents it contains. 
 
         11   A. I already indicated that, when documents come, we read, 
 
         12   examine, and have them classified into different categories we 
 
         13   already determined. In some -- on some documents, we know that 
 
         14   "Om Nuon" are there, and on some documents, we don't see these 
 
         15   names. We also noted that, on some telegrams text, it said "copy 
 
         16   to Om Nuon", and on some telegrams, not all. 
 
         17   Q. This does not answer my question, but I will move on. 
 
         18   [14.45.13] 
 
         19   I have to move on to DC-Cam procedure. I see I have little time 
 
         20   left, and I will have to avoid mentioning statements made by Youk 
 
         21   Chhang, so I have to rephrase some of these questions. 
 
         22   But you have stated that, when documents come in at DC-Cam, they 
 
         23   are inspected, and that makes sense. But do you personally 
 
         24   inspect every single document that comes into DC-Cam? 
 
         25   A. It is correct to say that we examine all documents received 
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          1   from various sources. The reason to do so is to ensure that 
 
          2   documents are classified according to its respective category and 
 
          3   that the numbering are well put on documents. 
 
          4   [14.46.29] 
 
          5   Q. I'll ask the question once more: When documents come in at 
 
          6   DC-Cam, do you, personally, Mr. Dara Peou, inspect every single 
 
          7   document that comes in? 
 
          8   A. As a person who compiles the document and register the 
 
          9   document, indeed, yes. 
 
         10   Q. And since when have you seen every single document that comes 
 
         11   into DC-Cam? Is that since the start of DC-Cam? 
 
         12   A. Could you please be more specific? Are you referring to every 
 
         13   piece of document  at DC-Cam or any specific ones? 
 
         14   Q. I was referring to any piece of document that comes into 
 
         15   DC-Cam. 
 
         16   A. Through interpreting, I heard that you are asking whether 
 
         17   there is any document input or entered DC-Cam. Is that what I 
 
         18   understood? 
 
         19   Q. I'm not too sure if you understand my question. I will 
 
         20   rephrase the question and make it more simple: Since you came to 
 
         21   work at DC-Cam, in -- it was '95, I believe, did you personally 
 
         22   inspect every document that came into DC-Cam, that was brought to 
 
         23   DC-Cam? 
 
         24   A. Thank you for the clarification. Indeed, I understand it well. 
 
         25   As I already indicated, we have received documents, and we have 
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          1   members in the documentary team who store the documents. And I 
 
          2   also am in charge of inspecting every document to ensure that 
 
          3   each and every document has proper numbering and accurate. 
 
          4   [14.49.27] 
 
          5   Q. That is a clear answer. And when a document comes in -- you've 
 
          6   already described some of the things you do and you've already 
 
          7   described that there is a database in which you enter information 
 
          8   -- is part of the information a list of custodians that have been 
 
          9   in possession of those documents since it was created? 
 
         10   A. Yes, there is a list of documents that have been classified 
 
         11   into different categories, as I indicated. 
 
         12   Q. I think there might be a translation issue. I will repeat the 
 
         13   question: Do you make a list of people that have been in 
 
         14   possession of this document in the periods before DC-Cam received 
 
         15   this document? 
 
         16   A. Yes, we -- we do have this list. 
 
         17   Q. So, for every documents that is at DC-Cam, you have a list of 
 
         18   people that have been in possession of this document before 
 
         19   DC-Cam obtained it? 
 
         20   [14.51.25] 
 
         21   A. I'm afraid the question has not been very clear, so could you 
 
         22   please rephrase it? 
 
         23   Q. Am I correct, in hearing your answer, that for every document 
 
         24   that is at DC-Cam, you actually have information as to who has 
 
         25   been the custodian of those documents before DC-Cam obtained it? 
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          1   A. At DC-Cam, you can obtain this information because staff 
 
          2   members who are in charge of documentation have their contract 
 
          3   and mandate to input data into -- documents into the entry. 
 
          4   Q. Do you have information for every document as to when it was 
 
          5   found, right after the DK era, right after 1997? 
 
          6   A. I think, through interpretation, your question is not clear to 
 
          7   me. Could you please repeat it? 
 
          8   [14.53.21] 
 
          9   Q. For every document that is at DC-Cam, do you have information 
 
         10   stored that will tell somebody that comes to DC-Cam to research 
 
         11   where this document was found, when it was found, and by whom it 
 
         12   was found, after the fall of the Khmer Rouge regime? 
 
         13   A. On the list, I may call it "list of documents" as it is 
 
         14   accessible on our website, you may go to each document and you 
 
         15   can identify the source of document, the date of entry. And I 
 
         16   think this website can give you further detail on this. 
 
         17   Q. Thank you, Mr. Dara. I actually have been on the website of 
 
         18   DC-Cam, and it does not provide me any information as to the 
 
         19   chain of custody, earlier custodians of documents, and where and 
 
         20   when these documents were found. 
 
         21   [14.54.38] 
 
         22   I look at the clock, and time is running out. I must say I have 
 
         23   many more questions, but before I am asked to sit down by the 
 
         24   President, I want to make a few general points relating to this 
 
         25   witness. 
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          1   I think that certain questions were asked yesterday by your Trial 
 
          2   Chamber and by the Prosecution that were not answered or not 
 
          3   clearly answered by the witness. This may be an issue of 
 
          4   translation, but either way, we are interested in those answers 
 
          5   and we incorporate those questions by reference. We cannot repeat 
 
          6   them here because time does not permit, but we would like to 
 
          7   eventually find an answer to these questions. 
 
          8   [14.55.28] 
 
          9   Also, the questions that I've not been able to ask today because 
 
         10   they rely on Mr. Youk Chhang's statements to the Court, it is 
 
         11   clear that the Nuon Chea team reserves the right to ask these 
 
         12   questions, to pose these questions to Mr. Youk Chhang, and I 
 
         13   think a lot remains unclear as to the chain of custody, 
 
         14   authenticity, and reliability of these documents, and the way 
 
         15   DC-Cam operates. And I think that these further questions need to 
 
         16   be addressed by Mr. Youk Chhang, who is, as we have stated 
 
         17   before, the best person to answer -- to provide answers to these 
 
         18   questions. 
 
         19   The last point that I wanted to make is -- it was the questions 
 
         20   that I was putting before the witness relating to lists, 
 
         21   clarifying chains of custody, providing us with names of 
 
         22   custodians. We already knew that this would not be possible 
 
         23   during this questioning of the witness, but it would be a request 
 
         24   of the Nuon Chea defence team to have DC-Cam provide a list of 
 
         25   documents that have been provided to the OCP and the OCIJ, with a 
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          1   list of -- per document, the custodians before DC-Cam obtained 
 
          2   these documents, where they were found, by whom they were found, 
 
          3   and when they were found. 
 
          4   And also-- I guess I will -- I will limit my request to this 
 
          5   point. 
 
          6   [14.57.22] 
 
          7   I do not want to be accused of ceding the floor, so I will 
 
          8   continue my questioning, even though I realize that I'm -- I'm 
 
          9   now at an hour of questioning. So I will continue my questioning 
 
         10   until your Chamber tells me otherwise. I'm looking at-- 
 
         11   [14.57.51] 
 
         12   MR. PRESIDENT: 
 
         13   Indeed, you are running out of time, and it is appropriate time 
 
         14   to take adjournment. 
 
         15   We will take 20-minute break, and the session will resume at 20 
 
         16   past three. 
 
         17   Counsel for Ieng Sary will proceed when we resume. 
 
         18   (Court recesses from 1458H to 1520H) 
 
         19   MR. PRESIDENT: 
 
         20   Please be seated. 
 
         21   I note that the International Co-Prosecutor is on his feet. You 
 
         22   may proceed. 
 
         23   [15.21.28] 
 
         24   MR. ABDULHAK: 
 
         25   Thank you, Mr. President. I'm very -- very much mindful that we 
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          1   have the witness in court. 
 
          2   I noted, just prior to us taking the break, counsel for Nuon Chea 
 
          3   effectively made an application for a chain of custody to be 
 
          4   provided for all of the documents which were supplied by DC-Cam. 
 
          5   The Office of the Co-Prosecutors opposes that application and 
 
          6   would like to be heard when time permits. 
 
          7   We don't think we need more than two or three minutes, at the 
 
          8   most, to set out a brief reply. And I understand that counsel for 
 
          9   the defence are keen to continue with the examination, so we will 
 
         10   do so if and when Your Honours consider it appropriate. Thank 
 
         11   you. 
 
         12   MR. PRESIDENT: 
 
         13   You may proceed. 
 
         14   [15.22.28] 
 
         15   MR. ABDULHAK: 
 
         16   Thank you very much, Mr. President. I will be very brief. 
 
         17   The application effectively seems to proceed on the -- on the 
 
         18   basis of an assumption that there is an obligation to provide a 
 
         19   full chain of custody for every evidential item that's proffered 
 
         20   in court. This, of course, is not the state of the law, either 
 
         21   before this tribunal or, more broadly, at the international 
 
         22   level. 
 
         23   I will refer very briefly to a relevant case law in the two 
 
         24   minutes that I will use. 
 
         25   Your Honours, of course, indicated in the Judgement in Case 001, 
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          1   at paragraphs 41 and 42, that evidence must only satisfy certain 
 
          2   conditions of relevance and probative value. And you then -- 
 
          3   earlier, also commented that all that was required was minimum 
 
          4   standards of relevance and reliability. 
 
          5   And this was in Your Honours' Decisions E43/4, which was a 26th 
 
          6   of May 2009 Decision, and E176, the 28th of October 2009 
 
          7   Decision. 
 
          8   Your Honours focused fairly and squarely on the minimum 
 
          9   requirements of relevance and reliability. At no point did Your 
 
         10   Honours indicate that a chain of custody or an examination of 
 
         11   authenticity of originals or otherwise was required. 
 
         12   [15.23.46] 
 
         13   Of course, Your Honours are in good company on this point, and 
 
         14   your decisions are consistent with those of the international 
 
         15   tribunals. I'll refer to only a couple. 
 
         16   In the Hadzihasanovic Case -- and this is Case Number IT-01-47, a 
 
         17   decision of the 2nd of August 2004 -- the Trial Chamber of the 
 
         18   ICTY held that for a document to be admitted as evidence only 
 
         19   prima facie proof of its reliability was sufficient. 
 
         20   In an earlier judgement at the ICTY, in the Case of Tadic -- and 
 
         21   this was IT-94-1-10 -- another Trial Chamber commented that a 
 
         22   strict approach to evidence, which was being proposed by the 
 
         23   Defence in that case, was not appropriate for an international 
 
         24   tribunal that is presided over by professional judges. And that 
 
         25   was at paragraph 17. 
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          1   Similar reasoning in the Case of Delalic, a 1998 decision 19th of 
 
          2   January 1998, Case Number IT-96-21-T, at paragraph 20. 
 
          3   All of these Chambers are making it clear that what is required 
 
          4   are prima facie relevance and reliability. Any issues as to 
 
          5   authenticity ultimately go to weight. 
 
          6   On that particular point, Blaskic, a case, again, before the 
 
          7   ICTY, Case Number IT-95-14, a 30th of January1998 decision, at 
 
          8   paragraph 10. 
 
          9   [15.25.24] 
 
         10   And lastly, before I conclude, again an ICTY Chamber, dealing 
 
         11   with issues of chain of custody, specifically, in the Case of 
 
         12   Oric -- this is Case Number IT-03-68-T -- a decision of the 30th 
 
         13   - rather, a Judgement rendered on the 30th of June 2006, where 
 
         14   the Chamber simply indicates that "gaps in the chain of custody 
 
         15   are not fatal", provided the evidence as a whole can be 
 
         16   demonstrated to be "what it purports to be". And this is at 
 
         17   paragraphs 27 and 28. 
 
         18   [15.26.01] 
 
         19   In summary, Your Honours, we oppose the application by Nuon 
 
         20   Chea's team. Our submission is evidence, as it stands on the case 
 
         21   file, offers sufficient indicia of relevance and reliability for 
 
         22   it to be admitted. 
 
         23   Beyond that point, of course, it is for Your Honours to determine 
 
         24   what weight can be attached to any individual item, and certainly 
 
         25   there is no requirement, under international law or the law of 
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          1   this tribunal, for authenticity or chains of custody to be 
 
          2   established. 
 
          3   And I thank Your Honours. 
 
          4   MR. PRESIDENT: 
 
          5   Counsel for Nuon Chea, you may proceed. 
 
          6   MR. PAUW: 
 
          7   Thank you. Thank you, Mr. President. I'll be even briefer than my 
 
          8   colleague, at Prosecution. 
 
          9   I think we discussed the legal issue surrounding this -- this 
 
         10   question, last week, and I think the positions of both sides are 
 
         11   very clear, so I'm not going to repeat that. I think our 
 
         12   submission should be seen much more in the practical light of the 
 
         13   witness statements that were delivered by this witness yesterday 
 
         14   and today. 
 
         15   [15.27.15] 
 
         16   The witness -- the questioning of the witness was intended to 
 
         17   clarify the chain of custody of certain documents and to shed 
 
         18   light on the authenticity and reliability of documents that come 
 
         19   from DC-Cam. And it's the position of the Defence that this 
 
         20   clarity has not been provided in the slightest, and therefore the 
 
         21   Defence cannot verify whether the documents that come from DC-Cam 
 
         22   satisfy these minimum requirements of authenticity and 
 
         23   reliability. 
 
         24   Again, as we have stated last week, hearing Youk Chhang might 
 
         25   remedy this black hole, in our knowledge. It may also not do so, 
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          1   but we only know this after hearing Youk Chhang. But for now, 
 
          2   what we have found out, that as far as the Defence is concerned, 
 
          3   we are still absolutely unclear as to the provenance and the 
 
          4   chain of custody of large chunks of documents. And this could 
 
          5   have been clarified by the witness yesterday and today, but in 
 
          6   Nuon Chea's position -- it's our position that this has not 
 
          7   happened. And it's for that reason that we've asked the witness 
 
          8   to see if -- or we've asked the Trial Chamber to order the 
 
          9   witness to provide these lists of chains of custody of the 
 
         10   documents that are at DC-Cam. 
 
         11   [15.28.41] 
 
         12   Whether DC-Cam can do so or not-- Maybe it's just all in their 
 
         13   files, and they just have to search for these items in the 
 
         14   computer. I have tried to establish, during the questioning of 
 
         15   the witness, but I have failed. Maybe Your Honours will have more 
 
         16   luck if you question the witness. I simply -- the Nuon Chea 
 
         17   defence team simply does not know if DC-Cam possesses this 
 
         18   information with regards to the chain of custody, earlier 
 
         19   custodians, where these documents were found, by whom, etc. 
 
         20   Again, Nuon Chea team and I think my colleagues in the Defence 
 
         21   are totally unclear on this issue, and it's for that reason that 
 
         22   we would request such lists to be provided by DC-Cam. That is the 
 
         23   Defence position. Thank you. 
 
         24   [15.29.33] 
 
         25   MR. PRESIDENT: 
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          1   Thank you. Next, the Chamber would like to hand over to counsel 
 
          2   for Ieng Sary to put questions to this witness. The floor is now 
 
          3   yours. 
 
          4   MR. KARNAVAS: 
 
          5   Good afternoon, Mr. President. Good afternoon, Your Honours. And 
 
          6   good afternoon to everyone in and around the courtroom. 
 
          7   First, let me just briefly say that, under international 
 
          8   practice, as is normally is the case in other tribunals, such 
 
          9   matters are handled outside the presence of a witness. And I do 
 
         10   take exception -- I didn't stand up, I didn't want to interrupt, 
 
         11   I didn't want to be discourteous, but I think this puts me in a 
 
         12   tactical disadvantage with a witness of this nature. 
 
         13   In the future, the better course would be to alert the legal 
 
         14   officer that a matter wishes -- that a party wishes to bring a 
 
         15   matter to the attention of the Court outside of the presence of 
 
         16   the witness. That's how it's handled, as opposed to taking 15, 20 
 
         17   minutes of a legal argument, in front of a lawyer who's here to 
 
         18   answer questions, who is not answering the questions. 
 
         19   [15.30.41] 
 
         20   And before I start my questioning, Your Honour, I would 
 
         21   respectfully request that the witness be refreshed of his memory 
 
         22   that he's under oath and that he's here to provide answers 
 
         23   forthrightly. 
 
         24   It is our position, Your Honour, Mr. President, that the witness 
 
         25   is confabulating, is being less than honest. 
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          1   So we would respectfully request that he be informed that he's 
 
          2   still under oath and is required to answer the questions 
 
          3   truthfully and fully. 
 
          4   MR. PRESIDENT: 
 
          5   The Chamber does not follow what requested by counsel, for the 
 
          6   fact that this witness has already taken an oath. 
 
          7   Counsel may proceed with the questions, based on their own 
 
          8   approach and relevant to the subject at issue. And counsel have 
 
          9   one and a half hour to proceed with the questions. 
 
         10   [15.32.30] 
 
         11   QUESTIONING BY MR. KARNAVAS: 
 
         12   Q. Mr. President, let me begin by re-asking a simple question 
 
         13   posed to you. 
 
         14   The question was whether, at DC-Cam, there is a particular file 
 
         15   on the accused Nuon Chea. Could you please answer this question 
 
         16   with a "yes", a "no", a "maybe" or "I don't know". 
 
         17   MR. VANTHAN DARA PEOU: 
 
         18   A. We have documents that are compiled. These documents have been 
 
         19   classified into their respective categories. That is the only 
 
         20   response that I can make. 
 
         21   [15.33.21] 
 
         22   Q. If I understand your answer correctly, there is no file which 
 
         23   says "Nuon Chea", "Ieng Sary", "Khieu Samphan"; that is your 
 
         24   answer? There's absolutely no file as such at DC-Cam? 
 
         25   A. That is correct. 
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          1   Q. Now, let's talk a little bit about your background. 
 
          2   As I understand it, you were 23 years old when you began working 
 
          3   at DC-Cam; is that correct? 
 
          4   A. I started work at DC-Cam in 1995. In 1995, I was-- 
 
          5   Q. I didn't - I didn't hear the answer. How old were you when you 
 
          6   started? 
 
          7   I mean, just work the math: the date that you were born, 1995; 
 
          8   how many years went by? 
 
          9   A. I was trying to calculate the date, I -- how old I was back 
 
         10   then. Now, it is 2012, and I am 40 years old now, so you can make 
 
         11   this calculation and see how old I was back then, in 1995. 
 
         12   Indeed, I worked at DC-Cam in 1995. 
 
         13   [15.35.20] 
 
         14   Q. Okay. Let me get it straight, then. I'll do the math for you. 
 
         15   You're 40 years old now, you worked 17 years. If we deduct 17 
 
         16   from 40 we come up with what figure? 23? Is my math correct? 
 
         17   A. I think -- with your help, I think it is of great assistance, 
 
         18   and, indeed, it is correct. 
 
         19   Q. All right. Now, you indicated yesterday that you went to Notre 
 
         20   Dame, I believe -- Notre Dame University, in the United States, 
 
         21   where you obtained an LLM; is that correct? 
 
         22   A. Yes, I did attend school in that university in the United 
 
         23   States. 
 
         24   Q. Did you get a Master's Degree? 
 
         25   [15.36.32] 
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          1   A. Yes, I get a Master's Degree. 
 
          2   Q. And did you go to Notre Dame because you received a 
 
          3   scholarship, for instance a Fulbright scholarship? Would that be 
 
          4   one of the ways you got there? 
 
          5   A. I was there on scholarship offered to me by the Human Rights 
 
          6   Department of that university. 
 
          7   Q. All right. And I take it the classes were in English, and not 
 
          8   Khmer. 
 
          9   A. Yes, it is correct. 
 
         10   Q. So it would be fair to say you understand English as well as 
 
         11   speak it, and read it, and write it? 
 
         12   A. Yes, it is. 
 
         13   Q. As so, when the questions were being posed to you by my 
 
         14   colleague of -- for Nuon Chea, you understood his questions in 
 
         15   English when there were being posed to you; did you not? 
 
         16   A. When listening to questions, I listen to Khmer channel because 
 
         17   Khmer is my mother tongue and I feel more confident to listen to 
 
         18   Khmer than to the English, which is a foreign language. 
 
         19   [15.38.04] 
 
         20   Q. Are you suggesting that you didn't hear the questions at all 
 
         21   in English? 
 
         22   A. I could overhear the English questions, but I think Khmer 
 
         23   channel already overwritten that voice. 
 
         24   Q. All right. Now, before coming here today, did you meet with 
 
         25   the lawyers for DC-Cam to prepare you for your examination here, 
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          1   in court? 
 
          2   A. At DC-Cam, there is no lawyer. 
 
          3   Q. There's no legal advisor? 
 
          4   A. So far, we have no legal officers at DC-Cam, and I have never 
 
          5   met them -- or any. 
 
          6   [15.39.04] 
 
          7   Q. There's no foreign lawyer there, working at DC-Cam, at the 
 
          8   moment, who usually is often quoted in the "Cambodia Daily" or 
 
          9   the "Phnom Penh Post?" 
 
         10   A. The term "lawyer" could be anyone like you, like anyone else 
 
         11   who is representing their clients in this courtroom. 
 
         12   Q. Did you -- did you consult with anybody from DC-Cam to prepare 
 
         13   your testimony yesterday and today? "Yes", "no", "maybe", "I 
 
         14   can't remember"? 
 
         15   A. No, I have never consulted with anyone. 
 
         16   Q. And did you consult any -- or review any documents to prepare 
 
         17   yourself to testify yesterday and today? 
 
         18   A. No. 
 
         19   Q. Did you follow the proceedings last week that we -- that were 
 
         20   open to the public, concerning the admissibility of evidence? 
 
         21   A. No, I was on my way to a province. 
 
         22   [15.40.34] 
 
         23   Q. All right. And so I take it, also, you had no conversations 
 
         24   with your -- with a Director of DC-Cam concerning what happened 
 
         25   here, last week, and your testimony here this week. And I only 
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          1   mention this because he was in the press commenting about what 
 
          2   took place last week. 
 
          3   A. Could you please refer to any news article mentioning that? 
 
          4   Q. Sir - sir, did you have a conversation with a director 
 
          5   concerning your testimony here today or yesterday? "Yes", "no", 
 
          6   "maybe", "I can't remember"? 
 
          7   A. No. 
 
          8   Q. All right. Now, earlier today, you were asked about whether 
 
          9   anybody from the Office of the Prosecution came to DC-Cam and 
 
         10   whether they consulted with DC-Cam, and I believe you indicated 
 
         11   "no"; did I hear you correctly? 
 
         12   [15.41.52] 
 
         13   A. I already stated that representative from Co-Prosecutors did 
 
         14   not meet me in person to discuss anything. 
 
         15   Q. Okay. Now I noticed that one of the legal advisors, or 
 
         16   academic -- academic and legal advisors, one or the other, is 
 
         17   someone by the name of Steve Heder; is that correct? 
 
         18   He's one of the advisors for DC-Cam? 
 
         19   A. Yes, it is correct. His name appears on the list of the 
 
         20   advisors. 
 
         21   Q. Well, I know he's on the list, but you would agree with me 
 
         22   that he is an advisor. Otherwise, the list makes no sense; 
 
         23   correct? 
 
         24   A. Yes, it is correct. 
 
         25   Q. Now, I take it you know that, at one point in time, Steve 
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          1   Heder worked for the Office of the Prosecution in preparing the 
 
          2   introductory submission for 002. 
 
          3   Were you meeting or have you -- did you have any meetings with 
 
          4   Mr. Heder during that period when he worked for the Office of the 
 
          5   Prosecution? 
 
          6   [15.43.23] 
 
          7   A. I met Mr. Steve Heder when he came to DC-Cam to scan some 
 
          8   documents. 
 
          9   Q. And he would have been -- he would have been a representative, 
 
         10   at the time, of the Office of the Prosecution. 
 
         11   A. It is correct, because he showed to us the Order of the 
 
         12   Co-Investigating Judges. 
 
         13   Q. All right. And-- Well, that was my next question. At some 
 
         14   point, he switched from the Office of the Prosecution to work for 
 
         15   the Co-Investigative Judges. Were you aware of that, that first 
 
         16   he was working for the Prosecution, drafting the introductory 
 
         17   submission, then working for the Co-Investigating Judges to 
 
         18   investigate what he had drafted? Were you aware of that? 
 
         19   [15.44.24] 
 
         20   A. Yes. 
 
         21   Q. And when he was working for the Office of the Co-Prosecutors, 
 
         22   did you meet with him, at that point in time, as a 
 
         23   representative? 
 
         24   A. No. 
 
         25   Q. All right. And since -- since he left -- well, let me 
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          1   rephrase. I just want to make sure I'm very clear. So, the entire 
 
          2   time that Steve Heder worked for the Office of the 
 
          3   Co-Investigative Judges, am I correct in understanding that your 
 
          4   answer is that you never met him in that capacity, as a 
 
          5   representative of the Office of the Co-Investigative Judges? You 
 
          6   never met him; is that correct? 
 
          7   A. Could you please repeat the question? Are you referring to the 
 
          8   time when he worked for the OCIJ or the OCP? 
 
          9   Q. The OCIJ. 
 
         10   A. As indicated, I met him -- met Steve Heder when he came to 
 
         11   scan documents at DC-Cam. 
 
         12   Q. And when he came to scan documents at DC-Cam, did you, by any 
 
         13   chance, have any conversations with him? 
 
         14   [15.46.08] 
 
         15   A. I provided with some -- I provided him with some documents so 
 
         16   that -- of course, according to the request -- for him to have 
 
         17   them scanned. 
 
         18   Q. All right, but I take it you didn't have a conversation with 
 
         19   him or a discussion with him pertaining to what was in the 
 
         20   documents, the substance of them. 
 
         21   A. No discussion. I only gave the documents to him, and he 
 
         22   scanned the documents. 
 
         23   Q. All right. Now, going back to your background very briefly 
 
         24   before I go into some of the other substantive areas of my 
 
         25   questioning, you're not a historian by training; correct? 
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          1   [15.47.06] 
 
          2   A. Yes, it is. 
 
          3   Q. All right. And would you consider yourself an analyst? 
 
          4   A. I have read a number of documents and have thought of those 
 
          5   documents. 
 
          6   Q. And concerning your educational background, as I understand, 
 
          7   it's in law; is that correct? 
 
          8   A. Yes, it is. 
 
          9   Q. Can you please describe to us the specific training that you 
 
         10   have received that would be relevant in you analyzing a document 
 
         11   in determining that the document is indeed authentic? 
 
         12   [15.48.05] 
 
         13   A. With regard to any training on analyzing document, I say none. 
 
         14   Q. All right. Now, I noticed over the last day and a half that 
 
         15   you've indicated that DC-Cam, and in particular you, have not 
 
         16   analyzed documents; is that correct? 
 
         17   A. Yes, it is. 
 
         18   Q. Now, in order for us to have this dialogue, if you could 
 
         19   please explain to us: What do you mean by "analyze"? What's your 
 
         20   version of "analyze"? What do you mean by that? 
 
         21   A. Personally, I think only after documents have been analyzed 
 
         22   whether they are exculpatory or inculpatory, that is called 
 
         23   "analyzed" by definition. 
 
         24   Q. And I take it what you're telling us is that you don't do 
 
         25   that, you don't read a document to see whether a particular 
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          1   document is incriminating, inculpatory, as you noted? 
 
          2   [15.49.39] 
 
          3   A. Our reading of the document is only to identify whether they 
 
          4   are original documents, whether they're copied documents, whether 
 
          5   they're documents that are relevant to the Democratic Kampuchea 
 
          6   or the Khmer Rouge regime. 
 
          7   Q. All right. Now, I'm not talking about everybody else, I just 
 
          8   want to focus on you. 
 
          9   So, in reading the document, of course you would agree that some 
 
         10   analysis would have to be done to determine whether the document 
 
         11   fit within the temporal jurisdiction of the -- of the DC-Cam 
 
         12   mandate; correct? 
 
         13   A. It is an assessment to fit the documents within the -- that 
 
         14   jurisdiction. 
 
         15   Q. All right. So I now notice that you use a different word, 
 
         16   "assessment". So am I -- if I'm to understand you correctly, 
 
         17   "assessment" is different from "analysis", in your way of 
 
         18   thinking; correct? 
 
         19   [15.51.04] 
 
         20   A. I think, yes. 
 
         21   Q. All right. Now, I notice that DC-Cam publishes articles, 
 
         22   newsletters, and in fact, as I understand it, you, yourself, have 
 
         23   also published; is that correct? 
 
         24   A. I am also the author of "The Search for the Truth" of the 
 
         25   DC-Cam. 
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          1   Q. You've authored articles; correct? 
 
          2   A. Yes, it is. 
 
          3   Q. And the articles that you've authored have been based, in 
 
          4   part, on documents that you've read; correct? 
 
          5   A. Some articles are written based on my understanding. 
 
          6   Q. All right. When you say "understanding" is that -- does that 
 
          7   mean that you read the article, you try to -- you read the 
 
          8   document, you try to figure out what's in the documents, and 
 
          9   then, from there, you draw a conclusion, and afterwards you put 
 
         10   it on paper? Is that what you're telling us? 
 
         11   [15.52.39] 
 
         12   A. This is how the articles have been written, and this is its 
 
         13   form as well. 
 
         14   Q. All right. Well, let me just probe a little bit. Are you 
 
         15   relying on secondary sources, that is what others have commented 
 
         16   on the documents -- historians, analysts, and what have you -- or 
 
         17   do you go to the original documents, analyze those, synthesize 
 
         18   what's in it, maybe even look at secondary sources, and then, 
 
         19   from there, draft your article? 
 
         20   A. This question is rather broad, and you have not referred to 
 
         21   any particular articles of mine. It would be better if any 
 
         22   particular article would be referred to. 
 
         23   Q. What part of the question you didn't understand so I can 
 
         24   reframe the question? Because I was talking about your method, 
 
         25   your approach, as opposed to a particular article. So what part 
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          1   of the question you did not understand, that you would want me to 
 
          2   repeat for you? 
 
          3   [15.54.07] 
 
          4   A. Normally, in writing an article, we base on some approaches, a 
 
          5   methodology in writing the article, and only if such article is 
 
          6   referred to then I can shed light on how it is written. 
 
          7   Q. All right. Very well. Now, you indicated -- and correct me if 
 
          8   I'm wrong, I don't want to put words in your mouth, but you 
 
          9   indicated -- I believe it was yesterday -- that all documents at 
 
         10   DC-Cam are authentic. I might get it wrong, so I want you to tell 
 
         11   us: Is it your position that all documents at DC-Cam are 
 
         12   authentic? Was that your testimony? 
 
         13   A. Yes. 
 
         14   Q. All right. Now, was that an assessment -- notice I use your 
 
         15   word, was that an "assessment" -- that you made or an analysis 
 
         16   that others have made? Which of the two? 
 
         17   A. It is an assessment to see whether the documents are 
 
         18   authentic. This part of the approach that we picked. 
 
         19   Q. Right. Now, you say "we". When you say "we", that's -- is that 
 
         20   the collective "we" of DC-Cam or is that you with somebody else? 
 
         21   Who's the "we"? 
 
         22   [15.55.55] 
 
         23   A. In compiling documents, there are other group of people who 
 
         24   join as a group to work on them. 
 
         25   Q. All right, but you're under oath -- you're under oath -- and 
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          1   you were posed the question, and you gave us this answer. So is 
 
          2   it fair to say that you, as a witness under oath, are here 
 
          3   telling us that all the documents are authentic, based on your 
 
          4   knowledge? 
 
          5   A. Yes, it is true, based on my knowledge. 
 
          6   Q. Now, could you please shed with us a little bit the 
 
          7   methodology that you, yourself, used -- perhaps with others -- in 
 
          8   determining that a particular document is authentic? 
 
          9   [15.57.01] 
 
         10   A. Documents are collected from the National Archive, for 
 
         11   example. I have read those documents, and finally I have 
 
         12   requested that the documents be copied from the National Archive 
 
         13   so that they can be transferred to DC-Cam. 
 
         14   Q. All right. Let me go back and rephrase my question. 
 
         15   I'm not asking you where you received them unless -- unless part 
 
         16   of your answer is that, if it came from the archive, the National 
 
         17   Archive, that, in and of itself, makes the document authentic; is 
 
         18   that your answer? 
 
         19   A. I think that was only an example of how authenticity was 
 
         20   conducted on any pieces of document we obtained. And we -- I, 
 
         21   personally, went to the National Archive to collect the 
 
         22   documents. 
 
         23   Q. All right. Well, before we talk about what you did -- and I 
 
         24   see we're running close to 4 o'clock, I'll ask my last question, 
 
         25   Your Honour, and then we'll pick it up tomorrow -- can you please 
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          1   describe to us what exactly the National Archive did to ensure 
 
          2   that the documents that they collected, and stored, and 
 
          3   preserved, and catalogued were authentic? 
 
          4   [15.58.57] 
 
          5   A. The National Archive is the place where national documents are 
 
          6   stored, and it is guided by the sub-decree by the Government, and 
 
          7   it is an expert institution. 
 
          8   Q. One last-- This deserves a follow-up, Mr. President. I'm not 
 
          9   asking whether it was founded by national decree; I understand 
 
         10   the concept of a national archive. What I'm asking you 
 
         11   specifically, if you know -- and if you don't, just say "I don't 
 
         12   know": What efforts -- what efforts, if any, did you or DC-Cam 
 
         13   make to see what were the criteria used by the National Archive 
 
         14   in determining authenticity of documents of this period that it 
 
         15   preserved? 
 
         16   A. I already often said that, with regard to the authenticity of 
 
         17   the documents, we normally asked persons who -- who kept the 
 
         18   documents how they were obtained in the first place. 
 
         19   [16.00.26] 
 
         20   Q. Sir, we're talking about the National Archive. I'm not talking 
 
         21   about persons. We'll get to that. So work with me. I'm just 
 
         22   talking about the National Archive. 
 
         23   Did you or anyone else at DC-Cam ever pose the question: What 
 
         24   criteria, if any, did they use in determining that a document was 
 
         25   authentic? It's either, "yes, we asked, and this is what they 
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          1   told us" or "no, we didn't ask" or "maybe, I don't know". It's 
 
          2   one of the three; pick one. 
 
          3   A. I stated that we asked this information concerning the 
 
          4   authenticity of the documents. This question was put to people 
 
          5   who keep the documents at the National Archive. 
 
          6   MR. KARNAVAS: 
 
          7   Your Honour, Mr. President, I believe we can pick it up tomorrow. 
 
          8   I'll be asking more specific questions concerning this particular 
 
          9   answer. Perhaps, he will provide us the details of what he 
 
         10   learned. 
 
         11   But thank you very much. I see it's 4 o'clock. 
 
         12   [16.01.41] 
 
         13   MR. PRESIDENT: 
 
         14   Thank you, Counsel. And thank you, Witness. 
 
         15   Mr. Dara Peou, we have noted that you would be here to give 
 
         16   testimonies during a period of two days. However, due to this 
 
         17   actual circumstance, we do need you for the whole morning 
 
         18   tomorrow, so please bear with us for another morning session. 
 
         19   And it is now appropriate time for adjournment. The Court will 
 
         20   adjourn. 
 
         21   Tomorrow's session will be resumed by 9 o'clock. Public and 
 
         22   parties to the proceeding, please be informed. 
 
         23   Security personnels are now instructed to bring the three accused 
 
         24   persons to the detention facility and have them return to the 
 
         25   courtroom before 9 a.m. 
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          1   The Court is adjourned. 
 
          2   (Court adjourns at 1602H) 
 
          3    
 
          4    
 
          5    
 
          6    
 
          7    
 
          8    
 
          9    
 
         10    
 
         11    
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